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The Ward-Meade house is located at the north edge of a residential area on the high 
bluff south of the Kansas river. On that prominent site it is visible for several miles, 
and from the house one can command a view of the fertile Kansas river valley. The large 
rambling house sita in a five-acre city botanical garden or park. The park is situated 
at the north end of Fill-more street adjacent to a deteriorating old residential neighbor­ 
hood. Within the park to the west of the Ward-Meade house is a parking lot, to the south 
a modernistic fountain, to the east the botanical garden, and to the north the bluff.

The original 1870 residence is similar in style to many residences built in the 
Topeka area in the 1860's and 1870's. The main section is two stories and square with 
an asymmetrical plan. Its east facade has three bays with the main entrance placed at 
the right. The entrance is recessed with a double door and mullioned light. The 
truncated hipped roof over the main portion has a wooden boxed cornice, as does the low 
hip roof over the wing to the north. The east and south exterior walls of the house 
were of soft red brick laid in stretcher bond; the north and west walls were of rough cut 
limestone laid in irregular horizontal courses. Window openings are tall rectangles, 
running almost from floor to ceiling. The windows are double hung with two panes in 
each sash. The lintels and lugsills are of dressed limestone. Originally the cornice 
had brackets and there were louvered shutters on the east facade. The oldest photograph 
available, dating from the 1870's, shows no porches on either the east or south sides.

After the Meades moved into the house in 1898, extensive changes and additions 
were made. A two-story brick kitchen and bedroom addition with a low hip roof and boxed 
cornice was built to the west. Also, two round arched windows were placed on the second 
floor of the west wall of the main section. These windows are outlined in brick in the 
stone wall.

In 1905 the two-story classic portico with four frame Ionic columns replaced a 
one-story shed-roofed verandah on the east front. Ionic posts also replaced the turned 
wood posts of the verandah on the south wall and on the remainder of east. The large 
porch and columns made the previously unassuming entrance appear monumental and gave the 
house a greater visibility. At the same time the walls were painted white and the 
shutters were painted to match the window and door trim.

A small frame addition appears to have been subsequently added to the north and 
west, but the date is not known. The hipped roofs are now covered with red composition 
shingles, and the cornices have been painted brown. The white paint has been removed 
from the east wall but a fading coat is still on the south wall.

Since the city of Topeka purchased the property in 1961 a garden and arboretum have 
been planted on the surrounding five acres and a patio has been built at the east 
entrance. A flat-roofed one story addition of dark red brick was built to the north in 
1972 to provide a meeting room for Topeka's Garden Clubs. A fountain has since been 
placed south of the house.

Many changes have occurred to the Ward-Meade house over the years, in a sense 
reflecting the changing styles that accompanied the growth and development of Topeka 
from a small crude settlement to a larger and more civilized community.

As a bicentennial project a local organization chartered as American Heritage, 
Inc., is seeking to restore the house. The exterior will be returned to its 1905-1906 
appearance as much as possible, and the first floor interior will be restored as an 
1870's residence. The second floor will be used for pioneer crafts rooms, featuring 
exhibits, demonstrations and opportunities for visitors to participate in the crafts.
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Anthony A. Ward first acquired the site of the present Ward-Meade house in June, 1854. 
He purchased 240 acres with three log cabins from a half-Pottawatomie named Joseph-James 
for $100. In September, 1854, he moved his family to the property; that was three months 
before the little settlement of Topeka was established about a mile to the east. Ward is 
said to have been the second white fanner in Shawnee county.

Ward was a native of Ohio and later emigrated to Independence, Mo. At the time of 
marriage to Mary Jane Foster in 1841, he was working at the Shawnee Methodist Mission, 
lat is now Fairway, Kan., as a wagonmaker. In 1849 he was caught up in the gold rush 

»r and started for California. He turned back in Wyoming after hearing reports of the 
ircity of grass on the trail and returned to the mission. In 1851 he moved to Uniontown 
Shawnee county, Kan., and then in 1854 moved a few miles east to the farm he had purchase
Ward decided to consolidate the three log cabins since none was large enough by itself 

louse his family. This was the only house for some distance so strangers frequently 
id their way to the Wards' door. Many of the people who were prominent in settling the 

'ritory and in establishing Topeka found a warm welcome, food, and a place to sleep at
Wards'. The log house was by far the best in the area and as early as 1856 was regarded 

'a "mansion" by settlers in the vicinity. The floors were bare but the living room had 
first wallpaper in the area.
In 1856 Ward tore off the east section, connected the other two with a brick wall, and 

jled a smoke house, kitchen and porch. He was a successful farmer and also owned the sand 
jhts for that part of his property which bordered the Kansas river. Sand was sold on a 
.f-service basis for five cents a wagon load.

Construction of the brick and stone house is believed to have begun in 1870. That was 
Lime of growth and new, more permanent construction for Topeka.

Ward didn't have long to enjoy his new house for he died in 1874. Mrs. Ward lived 
until her death in 1897. The property was then bequeathed to her daughter Jennie 

Meade.
John and Jennie Meade and their seven children moved into the house in 1898. Meade 

worked for the Santa Fe railroad since coming to Kansas in 1877. He had been an 
|d.stant engineer and resident engineer for a number of divisions. At the time of his 
:irement in 1919 he was lauded as one of the railroad's early pioneers and builders.

The Meades found the house too small for their large family and for entertaining their 
ly guests and friends, so the large addition was built to the west in 1898. In 1905 the 
:ch was remodeled. The four large classic columns were reportedly shipped from Chicago; 
jy closely resemble those of the Meade ancestral home near Winchester, Va.

John Meade died in 1924 and his wife Jennie in 1925. Their descendants continued to 
re in the house until the property was purchased by the city of Topeka in 1961. Parcels 
the original 240 acres had been sold at various times over the years for urban developmen 
some was taken for highway construction in the late 1950's. Only five acres remained
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with the house at the time of the city's purchase.

The city parks department has charge of the property which is also known as the 
Meade Park Garden Center. A 1963 city ordinance set aside the grounds for the culti­ 
vation and planting of trees/ shrubs and other flowering plants. The Meade Park Garden 
Center Association has used the house for meeting rooms, a horticultural library and 
other purposes. A meeting room facility for use of the Topeka Garden Clubs was added 
to the north in 1972.

The city of Topeka has given its approval to the efforts of American Heritage, 
Inc., to repair and restore the house. Because of the mixture of architectural periods, 
the exterior will be restored to its appearance subsequent to the addition of the large 
porch. Part of the interior will be returned to its 1870's appearance, while the 
upstairs will be developed for pioneer crafts displays.

Through the Ward-Meade house Topekans have a link to the founding of their city. 
The story of the house and its occupants reflects the history, changes, and expansion 
of the city. The house sits in a five-acre open green space not far from the center 
of the Topeka urban area. Its preservation seems to be assured for future generations 
of Topekans.

9.

Rastall, John E., "Topeka in 1856," Shawnee County Historical Society Bulletin, vol. 2,
no. 1 (March, 1948) pp. 19-25. Reprinted from Kansas Magazine, February, 1873. 

Topeka Daily Capital, Jan. 3, 1910; Dec. 5, 1914; Feb. 23, 1919. 
Topeka Journal, May 27, 1905; Mar. 19, 1949; Jan. 17, Mar. 25, 1975.

Note: A preliminary nomination form, from which much of the information used in this 
nomination form was obtained, was prepared by Kathryn Knickmeyer of the Topeka-Shawnee 
County Planning Commission staff and by members of American Heritage, Inc.


